
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

Audit Board

A meeting of the above Board will be held on

Wednesday 23 January 2019

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman)
Councillor A Bardoe (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor J S Hawkes
Councillor J A Hayes
Councillor A R Lloyd

Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor D Swinerd



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT BOARD

 AGENDA

Wednesday 23 January 2019

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Declarations of Interest. 

To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of any Grant(s) of Dispensation.

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 
October 2018 

MD
(Pages 1 - 10)

4. Urgent Items 

The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda.

5. References from Other Committees (IF ANY) 

There are presently no reports from other Committees for the 
Board to consider.

6. External Audit Update 
(Pages 11 - 24)

To receive an update report from the Council’s External Auditors, 
Grant Thornton UK.

7. Counter Fraud Team Update Report 
(Pages 25 - 30)

This report provides Board Members with details of the work 
carried out by the Counter Fraud Team in the period 1 April to 31 
December 2018.

8. Internal Audit Update Report - January 2019 
(Pages 31 - 48)

This report provides Members with an update on progress made 
to date on the delivery of the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan.  It also 



provides a broader update on the audit service since our last 
report to the Board in October 2018.

9. Selective Invoice Checks 
(Pages 49 - 52)

During the Board meeting held on 24 October 2018 Members 
selected 5 (five) creditor payments for checking by Internal Audit. 
This report summarises the findings of that exercise and provides 
Members the opportunity to select further payments for checking.



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD

MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 24 October 2018 at 
7.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman)
Councillor A Bardoe (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor J S Hawkes
Councillor A R Lloyd
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor D Swinerd

ABSENT: Councillor J A Hayes

IN ATTENDANCE: Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services) 
& Section 151 Officer

Sheri Green – Strategic Director (External 
Services) & Monitoring Officer

Marie Kelly-
Stone

– Head of Legal Services & Deputy 
Monitoring Officer

Tim Sams – Financial Services Manager
Russell 
Heppleston

– Interim Audit Manager/Chief Audit 
Executive

Darren Wells – Grant Thornton UK (External 
Auditors)

15. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

 An apology for absence had been received from Councillor J A Hayes.

The Chairman welcomed Darren Wells from Grant Thornton UK (External 
Auditors) and noted the presence of the Strategic Director (Internal Services) 
& Section 151 Officer, the Strategic Director (External Services) & Monitoring 
Officer, the Head of Legal Services & Deputy Monitoring Officer, the Financial 
Services Manager and the recently appointed Audit Manager, Russell 
Heppleston. At the invitation of the Chairman, the Audit Manager appraised 
Members of his previous audit work experience with the Mid-Kent Audit 
Partnership and Maidstone Council.

16. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST. 

There were no declarations of interest.

17. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 30 JULY 
2018 

RESOLVED:



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2018

2

1. That the Minutes of the Audit Board meeting held on 30 July 2018 be 
confirmed as accurate.

18. MATTERS ARISING - UPDATE FROM THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
(INTERNAL SERVICES) & SECTION 151 OFFICER 

The SD(IS)/Section 151 Officer confirmed the following points arising from the 
Board’s meeting on 30 July 2018 for Members:

 Counter Fraud & Compliance Team Annual Report 2017/18 [Min. 
No. 8 refers]: a dedicated Dartford [01322] hot-line number had been 
re-instated for Dartford residents to contact the CF&C Team in their 
offices at Sevenoaks Council;

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18 [Min. No. 11 refers]: the audit 
client who had ‘Strongly Disagreed’ with the timing of their audit was 
the Payroll Manager, given the potential impact on his Section’s work. 
Arrangements had been put in place to ensure better liaison over the 
timing of any future audits of the Section;

 Review of Internal Audit Recommendations - Progress Report 
[Min. No. 12 refers]: sign-off by the Managing Director (MD) of the 
Council’s IT Security Policy had been temporarily suspended, following 
the retirement of the ICT Manager and the appointment of an external 
IT consultant to conduct a review of the Council’s ICT structure and 
operation going forward. The outcome of that review would be 
incorporated into the Council’s new IT Security Policy document for 
agreement by Senior Management and sign-off by the MD in due 
course.

The Chairman and Members noted the progress made as recorded above. 

19. URGENT ITEMS 

The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for the Board to 
consider.

20. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY) 

There were no references from other Committees for the Board to consider.

21. REPORT FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR 

The covering report from the Financial Services Manager enclosed two 
documents from the Council’s External Auditors Grant Thornton UK for Board 
Members to note:

 Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for Year ending 31 March 
2018 (attached as Appendix A to the report);

 Annual Audit Letter for Year ending 31 March 2018 (attached as 
Appendix B to the report)



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2018

3

He advised Members that the Audit Progress Report was forward looking and 
detailed how Grant Thornton as External Auditor would deliver its 
responsibilities to the Council - the ‘2018/19 Deliverables’ to the following 
timescale:

 Fee Letter for 2018/19 (received April 2018 – Min. No. 7 refers);
 Accounts Audit Plan – a detailed plan would be presented to the Board 

in January 2019;
 Interim Audit Findings – March 2019;
 Auditors Report - July 2019;
 Annual Audit Letter August 2019;
 Annual Certification Letter – December 2019.

The Annual Audit Letter formally drew to a close the work undertaken by 
Grant Thornton in the Year ending 31 March 2018, including an Unqualified 
Opinions of the Council’s Financial Statements and Value for Money 
Conclusion, as presented to the Board in July 2018 [Min. Nos. 7 and 8 refer].

Board Members were advised that the External Auditor’s work to certify the 
Council’s Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the Department for Work 
and Pensions (DWP) - the Certificate of Grants - was not yet complete, but 
would be finalised by 30 November 2018 for presentation to the Board in 
January 2019.

In response to a specific question from a Member concerning a ‘tipping point’ 
having been reached in respect of local government finances [Grant Thornton 
Sector Update - agenda p. 20] Darren Wells (GT) advised the Board that; 
whilst subject to the national trends of achieving greater efficiency in the 
delivery of public services against a backdrop of increased demand and 
ongoing budget pressures; the Council’s financial outlook was stable.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the Audit Progress Report and Sector Update for 
the Year ending 31 March 2018 [attached at Appendix A to the report] 
as presented by the External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK;

2. That Members note the Annual Audit Letter for the Year ending 31 
March 2018 [attached at Appendix B to the report] as also presented 
by Grant Thornton;

3. That the Board’s appreciation of the work undertaken by the Council’s 
Financial Services Manager and his Team, be recorded in these 
Minutes.



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2018

4

22. ANNUAL REPORT 2017/2018 OF THE MONITORING OFFICER ON THE 
REVIEW OF ETHICAL GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND 
ANCILLARY MATTERS 

The report asked Board Members to review and endorse the Council’s ethical 
governance arrangements and ancillary matters as set out in the Monitoring 
Officer’s Annual Report for 2017/2018 attached as Appendix A to the report. 

The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report 2017/18 [Appendix A] had focussed 
on the effectiveness of the Council’s ethical governance framework and 
reviewed its governance and ancillary matters as listed in para 3.1 (a) to (e) 
and summarised in paras 3.2 and 3.3 [agenda pages 41/42 refer].

The Head of Legal Services & Deputy Monitoring Officer advised Members 
that in addition to reviewing the Council’s Constitution and standards; the bulk 
of the work undertaken to complete the 2017/18 Annual Report had been the 
review of the Council’s existing governance arrangements; to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of the Government’s May 2018 General 
Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). The training of Members and staff to 
ensure that they were aware of, and conformed to, the requirements of GDPR 
prior to publication in May 2018 had been a further significant area of work for 
the Legal Services team. 

Regarding the ethical arrangements in place for the ‘Member Code of 
Conduct’ [Appendix A - paras 3.2 and 6.1 to 6.7]; the Strategic Director 
(External Services) & Monitoring Officer advised Members that the 
recruitment of a replacement ‘Independent Person(s)’ had begun and adverts 
placed in the local media and on appropriate professional websites, and that 
the review of the existing Arrangements procedure for dealing with complaints 
was reported in detail elsewhere in the agenda [Item 9 Min. No. 23 refers].

The Shadow Leader of the Council [attending as an Audit Board Member] 
noted the key role played by the Monitoring Officer in overseeing the 
Council’s governance arrangements. He asked what the key strengths of the 
Constitution were and whether there were any areas of weakness. 

The Head of Legal Services & Deputy Monitoring Officer advised Members 
that the Council’s Constitution had been strengthened, following the extensive 
work undertaken in the period under review to ensure that the Council’s 
governance arrangements and ancillary matters where fully compliant with the 
Government’s new GDPR provisions and other legislative requirements. An 
identified weakness had been the provision of only one ‘Independent Person’ 
in the Council’s governance arrangements for the Member Code of Conduct 
(following the resignation of Mr Peter Collins). However, it was proposed to 
replace Mr Collins with 2 or 3 ‘Independent Persons’ in the current recruitment 
process. 

The Strategic Director (External Services) & Monitoring Officer confirmed the 
weakness identified in the previous provision of a sole ‘Independent Person’ 
and confirmed the proposal to recruit 2 or 3 for the future. This would be of 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2018

5

particular benefit when the Monitoring Officer and the Member [that was the 
subject of a complaint] both had recourse to advice from an ‘Independent 
Person’; as clarified in detail elsewhere in the agenda. Inquiries were being 
made of Kent Secretaries, by the Head of Legal Services, to invite other local 
authority Independent Persons to assist should it prove necessary in the 
interim. 

In response to a further specific question from the Vice-Chairman, the Head of 
Legal Services & Deputy Monitoring Officer confirmed that it was proposed 
that more than 1 ‘Independent Person’ would be recruited for the future, and 
that a report would be submitted to the next meeting of the General Assembly 
of the Council to this effect, including the proposal to invite Independent 
Persons from local authorities to advise the Council on an interim basis if 
required. 

The Shadow Leader of the Council expressed his concern over the number of 
separate Overview and Scrutiny Committees the Council had appointed, and 
expressed his doubt over the ‘scrutiny’ role currently being undertaken by the 
Cabinet A and B Panels, and whether there was sufficient definition and 
separation between Cabinet and those Panels in terms of that scrutiny 
function [Appendix A para 3.6 agenda pages 51/52]. 

He asked what role Officers had to play in judging the democracy of the 
current procedures for these Committees and Panels.

The Strategic Director (External Services) & Monitoring Officer advised 
Members that the role of Officers was to judge whether Committees, Boards 
and Panels were meeting the Council’s statutory obligations, and confirmed 
that Officers were so satisfied, as set out in her Annual Report for 2017/18.

The Head of Legal Services & Deputy Monitoring Officer further clarified that, 
given the role of Officers in writing the Council’s Constitution, any review of 
the current arrangements would have to be subjected to independent third 
party review. 

The Chairman noted, and the Head of Legal Services concurred, that the 
input of all Members had been sought and fed into the conclusions of a 
Review Panel [circa 2000], prior to the current Cabinet system being 
approved by the General Assembly of the Council (GAC). 

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note and endorse the Monitoring Officer’s Annual 
Report for 2017/2018 as set out in Appendix A to the report.

23. REVIEW OF ARRANGEMENTS FOR CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 
UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011 

The report from the Head of Legal Services & Deputy Monitoring Officer 
asked Members to approve revised Arrangements for dealing with Code of 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2018

6

Conduct Complaints under the Localism Act 2011; as set out in Appendix A to 
her report.

In response to specific questions from Members concerning Appendix A the 
Monitoring Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officer confirmed the following 
points:

 ‘Issues arising/lessons to be learnt’ from the period under review would 
be incorporated into Member training as appropriate, and recorded in 
the 2018/19 report to the Board;

 ‘Consultation with the Independent Person’ [para 2 (a) and (b) agenda 
p.87]: under the previous Arrangements the Monitoring Officer had had 
to consult the Independent Person on every occasion, even when it 
was clear that a complaint did not meet the criteria and would be 
rejected, and an investigation not therefore required. This had been 
constraining in terms of time and effort for all parties concerned, and 
the revised Arrangements [Appendix A 2 (b) refers] now allowed the 
Monitoring Officer to exercise her judgement in whether to consult the 
Independent Person, when she was minded not to investigate a 
complaint. This was consistent with the terms of the Localism Act 2011;

 ‘Legal jurisdiction and Local Criteria Tests’ [para 3 agenda 
pages87/88]: the Monitoring Officer (MO) will initially assesses all 
complaints received against the criteria (a) to (f) of the legal jurisdiction 
test. If the complaint failed one or more of the criteria it was rejected. If 
a complaint satisfied all the criteria in the legal jurisdiction test it was 
assessed against criteria (a) to (l) of the local assessment test and 
again dismissed, unless it met all of those criteria. Where assessment 
of a complaint against an individual criteria was ‘subjective’ in nature, 
the MO might choose to consult the Independent Person in such 
circumstances, prior to rejecting the complaint;

 When complaints are rejected the MO explained to the complainant 
why, and quoted the criteria the complaint had failed to meet;

 Members were also notified of decisions to dismiss complaints made 
against them, together with a summary of the complaint made.

Members queried whether the Member being complained of, had a right to be 
represented at the Hearing Panel (by either a lawyer or a colleague). The 
Deputy Monitoring Officer undertook to review the matter and produce a 
procedure in due course.

The Chairman and Members thanked the Monitoring Officer and Deputy 
Monitoring Officer for their positive responses to their specific questions as 
detailed above.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members approve the revised Arrangements as set out in  
Appendix A to the report with the following additions:



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2018

7

(i) That Members be formally notified of all/any dismissed 
complaints made against them;

(ii) That ‘lessons learnt’ from complaints be referred to in future 
Annual Reports from the Monitoring Officer;  

(iii) That the right to be represented at the Hearing Panel be 
incorporated in a procedure by the Head of Legal 
Services/Deputy Monitoring Officer.

24. COMPLAINTS MONITORING AND PROCEDURE REVIEW 2017/2018 

The standard report and Appendices from the Head of Legal Services 
provided Members with information on the Council’s Corporate Complaints 
Procedure, including the number and nature of complaints received in respect 
of Services provided by the Council, during the period 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2018.

The Chairman welcomed the report and noted that the number of complaints 
received in the period under review had dropped by some 12% compared to 
the corresponding 12 month period to 31 March 2017.  He viewed this 
development as a positive reflection on the delivery of Council services to 
Dartford residents.

RESOLVED:

1.   That the Board note the contents of the report.

25. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 

The update report from the Interim Audit Manager enclosed an Internal Audit 
Progress Report (attached as Appendix A) which detailed progress made up 
to October 2018 in completing the 2018/19 Audit Plan; together with a broader 
update on the Internal Audit Service; following the appointment of the Interim 
Audit Manager and Chief Audit Executive in August 2018.

The IAM/CAE advised Members that his new Internal Audit Progress Report 
(IAPR) combined the three separate reports previously presented to the 
Board detailing progress on the Audit Plan, Audit Reports Outstanding and 
Audit Reports completed. 

He highlighted the following points for Members in the new format IAPR 
document [Appendix A];

 Page 131 – Resources: during the first 6 months of the 2018/19 Plan 
30% of the Plan Days had been used, and it was confirmed that IA 
service had sufficient resources to meet the ‘back-loaded’ demands 
contained in Quarters 3 and 4 of the Plan. Following hand-over from 
his predecessor in July 2018 all Qtr. 3 audit work had been scheduled 
and all Qtr. 4 work had been planned and agreed for the end of the 
year;



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2018

8

 Page 134 – Audit Work Summaries: these had been kept short in the 
absence of any ‘Adverse’ Opinions, greater detail would be provided in 
the future if a ‘Limited’ or ‘No Assurance’  opinion was issued;

 Page 136 – Outstanding Recommendations: 22 of 37 of these had 
been completed with only 15 Recommendations left ‘live’. Extensions 
had been agreed with management for the 3 (red) High Priority recs. 
with the Low Priority (green) recs. not due until January 2019 [table 
foot of p.136];

 Page 139 – Data Protection (GDPR) and Homelessness: both these 
Recommendations were to be closed-off later in the audit year, and 
incorporated into reviews scheduled between January - March 2019;

 Page 140 – Service Update: the objectives of the IAM/CAE position, 
had been linked to outstanding recommendations from the External 
Quality Assessment under taken by PriceWaterhouseCooper, and 
would be incorporated into the new Audit Strategy and Plan for 
2019/20.

The Chairman noted that the % figure quoted in para 11 of the report [agenda 
p. 131] should be 40% not 30% and the IAM acknowledged and noted the 
error. 

The IAM/CAE also confirmed for Members, that he would be supervising and 
supporting the ongoing development and training of the current Internal Audit 
team, including their annual appraisals; to ensure that existing specialist skills 
were kept and new skills developed to meet the challenges faced by the 
Team going forward. 

The Chairman thanked the IAM/CAE for his update report, and expressed his 
preference for the new format adopted for the IAPR [Appendix A] which gave 
Board Members greater detail on the work undertaken by the IA Team, whilst 
remaining concise and clear in its format. 

The Vice-Chairman and the Cabinet Member for Strategic Council Finances 
[attending as a Board Member] supported the Chairman in these views.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the Internal Audit Progress Report (IAPR) attached 
as Appendix A to the covering report.

26. SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS 

At the July meeting of the Board, Members selected 5 (five) creditor payments 
for checking by Internal Audit, to provide Members with reasonable assurance 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 OCTOBER 2018

9

that goods and services commissioned or procured and for which payment 
had been made, were in compliance with Council procedures.  

The report advised the Board of the outcome of that exercise and found that 
that all 5 creditor payments selected, were made appropriately and in 
compliance with Council procedures, as set out in detail in paragraphs 3.2 to 
5.5 of the report [agenda pages 143/144]. The report also invited Members to 
select 5 further payments for checking by Internal Audit for report to the Board 
in January 2019.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the contents of the report;

2. That Members select a further 5 (five) creditor payments for checking 
by Internal Audit and that the outcome of that exercise be reported to 
the next meeting of the Board in January 2019.

The meeting closed at 7.55 pm

Councillor D A Hammock
CHAIRMAN





               
AUDIT BOARD
23 January 2019

EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE

1.      Summary

To present to the Board the Audit Progress Report and Sector Update.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 T
That Members note the Audit Progress Report and Sector Update attached 
as Appendix A to this report.

3. Background and Discussion  
. 

3.1 The Audit Progress Report and Sector Update document provides the Audit 
Board with a report on the progress of the external auditors in delivering their 
responsibilities for the 2018/19 financial year. The document also includes a 
summary of Sector issues and developments, technical issues and the latest 
Grant Thornton Publications.

3.2 Elizabeth Jackson (Grant Thornton) will present the reports to the Board. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Not applicable

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications As specified in the report
Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment None

6. Appendices

Appendix A – Grant Thornton – Audit Progress Report and Sector Update



               
AUDIT BOARD
23 January 2019

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Appendix to this 
report

Tim Sams
343148

Internal 
Services/ 
Financial 
Services

N/A



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Dartford Borough Council

Year ending 31 March 2019

4 January 2019



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 3

Progress at 4 January 2019 4

Audit Deliverables 5

Sector Update 6

Links 14

2



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

This paper provides the Audit Board with a report on progress in delivering our 

responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a 

local authority.

Members of the Audit Board can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section dedicated to 

our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications. Click on the Grant Thornton logo to 

be directed to the website www.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.

tthornton.co.uk/sights/local-government--transitioning-successfully/

Introduction

3

Elizabeth Jackson

Engagement Lead 

T    020 772 3329 

M 07780 456191 

E elizabeth.l.jackson@uk.gt.com

http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Value for Money

The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued 

by the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors 

to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 

significant respects, the audited body had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 

decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 

and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 

people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties.

We will begin our initial risk assessment to determine our 

approach in February 2019.

We will report the results of our work in the Audit Findings 

Report and give our Value For Money conclusion.

Progress at 4 January 2019

4

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We certified the Council’s annual Housing Benefit 

Subsidy claim in accordance with procedures agreed 

with the Department for Work and Pensions in 

November 2018.

The results of the certification work are reported to you 

in our certification letter.

Meetings

We met with the Strategic Director Internal Services to 

discuss the Council’s strategic priorities and plans.

We will meet with Finance Officers in January as part of 

our quarterly liaison meetings and continue to be in 

discussions with finance staff regarding emerging 

developments and to ensure the audit process continues 

to be smooth and effective. 

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network 

events for members and publications to support the 

Council. Our next event is a financial reporting workshop 

to be held in early spring. Further details of the 

publications that may be of interest to the Council are 

set out in our Sector Update section of this report.

2018/19 Audit

We have started the initial planning for the 2018/19 

financial statements audit and are due to commence 

our interim audit from February 2019. Our interim 

fieldwork visits are expected to include:

• Updated review of the Council’s control 

environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Updated the IT general controls 

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 

systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing.

We expect to issue out audit plan summarising our 

approach to the key risks on the audits by March 

2019. We will report any findings from the interim 

audits at the next Audit Board.

.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Audit Deliverables

5

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

January 2019 Not yet due

2018/19 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2018/19.

April 2018 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Board setting out our proposed approach in 

order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2018-19 financial statements.

March 2019 Not yet due

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial value for money risk assessment within 

our Audit Plan.

April 2019 Not yet due

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Board.

July 2019 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2019 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2019 Not yet due

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work.

December 2019 Not yet due



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 

emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 

cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 

wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 

the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 

out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 

on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 

research publications in this update. We also include areas of 

potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 

with audit committee members, as well as any accounting and 

regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

6

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 

government sections on the Grant Thornton website

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 

specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Institute of Fiscal Studies: Impact of ‘Fair 
Funding Review’

The IFS has published a paper that focuses on the issues 

arising in assessing the spending needs of different councils. 

The government’s ‘Fair Funding Review’ is aimed at 

designing a new system for allocating funding between 

councils. It will update and improve methods for estimating 

councils’ differing abilities to raise revenues and their differing 

spending needs. The government is looking for the new 

system to be simple and transparent, but at the same time 

robust and evidence based.

Accounting for councils’ spending needs

The IFS note that the Review is seeking a less subjective and more transparent 

approach which is focused on the relationship between spending and needs 

indicators. However, like any funding system, there will be limitations, for example, 

any attempt to assess needs will be affected by the MHCLG’s funding policies 

adopted in the year of data used to estimate the spending needs formula.  A key 

consideration will be the inherently subjective nature of ‘spending needs’ and ‘needs 

indicators’, and how this will be dealt with under any new funding approach. Whilst 

no assessment of spending needs can be truly objective, the IFS state it can and 

should be evidence based.

The IFS also note that transparency will be critical, particularly in relation to the 

impact that different choices will have for different councils, such as the year of data 

used and the needs indicators selected. These differentiating factors and their 

consequences will need to be understood and debated.

7

Accounting for councils’ revenues 

The biggest source of locally-raised revenue for councils is and will continue to be 

council tax. However, there is significant variation between councils in the amount 

of council tax raised per person. The IFS identify that a key decision for the Fair 

Funding Review is the extent wo which tax bases or actual revenues should be 

used for determining funding levels going forward.

Councils also raise significant sums of money from levying fees and charges, 

although this varies dramatically across the country. The IFS note that it is difficult 

to take account of these differences in a new funding system as there is no well-

defined measure of revenue raising capacity from sales, fees and charges, unlike 

council tax where the tax base can be used.

The overall system: redistribution, incentives 

and transparency

The IFS also identify that an important policy 

decision for the new system is the extent to which it 

prioritises redistribution between councils, compared 

to financial incentives for councils to improve their 

own socio-economic lot. A system that fully and 

immediately equalises for differences in assessed 

spending needs and revenue-raising capacity will 

help ensure different councils can provide similar 

standards of public services, However, it would 

provide little financial incentive for councils to tackle 

the drivers of spending needs and boost local 

economics and tax bases. 

Further detail on the impact of the fair funding review 

can be found in the full report 

https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/publications/comms/R

148.pdf.

https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/publications/comms/R148.pdf


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

National Audit Office – The health and social care 
interface

The NAO has published its latest ‘think piece on the barriers 

that prevent health and social care services working together 

effectively, examples of joint working in a ‘whole system’ 

sense and the move towards services centred on the needs 

of the individual. The report aims to inform the ongoing 

debate about the future of health and social care in England. 

It anticipates the upcoming green paper on the future funding 

of adult social care, and the planned 2019 Spending Review, 

which will set out the funding needs of both local government 

and the NHS. 

The report discusses 16 challenges to improved joint working. It also highlights some of the 

work being carried out nationally and locally to overcome these challenges and the progress 

that has been made. The NAO draw out the risks presented by inherent differences between 

the health and social care systems and how national and local bodies are managing these.

Financial challenges – include financial pressures, future funding uncertainties, focus on 

short-term funding issues in the acute sector, the accountability of individual organisations to 

balance the books, and differing eligibility criteria for access to health and social care 

services.  

Culture and structure – include organisational boundaries impacting on service 

management and regulation, poor understanding between the NHS and local government of 

their respective decision-making frameworks, complex governance arrangements hindering 

decision-making, problems with local leadership holding back improvements or de-stabilising 

joint working, a lack of co-terminus geographic areas over which health and local 

government services are planned and delivered, problems with sharing data across health 

and social care, and difficulties developing. person-centred care.

Strategic issues – include differences in national influence and status contributing to social 

care not being as well represented as the NHS, strategic misalignment of organisations 

across local systems inhibiting joint local planning, and central government’s unrealistic 

expectations of the pace at which the required change in working practices can progress..

This ‘think piece’ draws on the NAO’s past work and draws on recent research and reviews 

by other organisations, most notably the Care Quality Commission’s review of health and 

social care systems in 20 local authority areas, which it carried out between August 2017 

and May 2018. The NAO note  that there is a lot of good work being done nationally and 

locally to overcome the barriers to joint working, but often this is not happening at the scale 

and pace needed.

The report is available to download from the NAO’s website at: 

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-health-and-social-care-interface/

8

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-health-and-social-care-interface/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

The Vibrant Economy Index
a new way to measure success

Places are complex and have an intrinsic impact on the people and businesses within them. 

Economic growth doesn’t influence all of the elements that are important to people’s lives –

so we shouldn’t use GDP to measure success. We set out to create another measure for 

understanding what makes a place successful. 

In total, we look at 324 English local authority areas, taking into account not only economic 

prosperity but health and happiness, inclusion and equality, environmental resilience, 

community and dynamism and opportunity. Highlights of the index include:

• Traditional measures of success – gross value added (GVA), average workplace earning 

and employment do not correlate in any significant way with the other baskets. This is 

particularly apparent in cities, which despite significant economic strengths are often 

characterised by substantial deprivation and low aspiration, high numbers of long-term 

unemployment and high numbers of benefit claimants

• The importance of the relationships between different places and the subsequent role of 

infrastructure in connecting places and facilitating choice. The reality is that patterns of 

travel for work, study and leisure don’t reflect administrative boundaries. Patterns emerge 

where prosperous and dynamic areas are surrounded by more inclusive and healthy and 

happy places, as people choose where they live and travel to work in prosperous areas.

• The challenges facing leaders across the public, private and third sector in how to 

support those places that perform less well. No one organisation can address this on 

their own. Collaboration is key.

Visit our website (www.grantthornton.co.uk) to explore the interactive map, read case studies 

and opinion pieces, and download our report Vibrant Economy Index: Building a better 

economy.

Vibrant Economy app

To support local collaboration, we have also developed a Vibrant Economy app. It's been 

designed to help broaden understanding of the elements of a vibrant economy and 

encourage the sharing of new ideas for – and existing stories of – local vibrancy. 

We’ve developed the app to help people and organisations:

• see how their place performs against the index and the views of others through an 

interactive quiz

• post ideas and share examples of local activities that make places more vibrant

• access insights from Grant Thornton on a vibrant economy.

We're inviting councils to share it with their employees and the wider community to 

download. We can provide supporting collateral for internal communications on launch and 

anonymised reporting of your employees' views to contribute to your thinking and response.

9

To download the app visit your app store and search 'Vibrant Economy‘

• Fill in your details to sign up, and wait for the verification email (check 

your spam folder if you don't see it)

• Explore the app and take the quiz

• Go to the Vibrant Ideas section to share your picture and story or idea

Our Vibrant Economy Index uses data to provide a robust, independent framework to help everyone understand the 

challenges and opportunities in their local areas. We want to start a debate about what type of economy we want to build 

in the UK and spark collaboration between citizens, businesses and place-shapers to make their places thrive.

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | January 2019

Supply Chain Insights tool helps support supply 
chain assurance in public services

Grant Thornton UK LLP has launched a new insights and 

benchmarking platform to support supply chain assurance 

and competitor intelligence in public services. 

The Supply Chain Insights service is designed for use by financial directors and procurement 

professionals in the public sector, and market leaders in private sector suppliers to the public 

sector. It provides users with a detailed picture of contract value and spend with their supply 

chain members across the public sector. The analysis also provides a robust and granular 

view on the viability, sustainability, market position and coverage of their key suppliers and 

competitors.

The platform is built on aggregated data from 96 million invoices and covers £0.5 trillion of 

spending.  The data is supplemented with financial standing data and indicators to give a 

fully rounded view. The service is supported by a dedicated team of analysts and is available 

to access directly as an on-line platform.

Phillip Woolley, Partner, Grant Thornton UK LLP, said: 

"The fall-out from the recent failure of Carillion has highlighted the urgent need for robust and 

ongoing supply chain monitoring and assurance.  Supply Chain Insights provides a clear 

picture of your suppliers’ activities across the sector, allowing you to understand risks, 

capacity and track-record.  We think it’s an indispensable resource in today’s supplier 

market." 

The tool enables you to immediately:

• access over 96 million transactions that are continually added to

• segment invoices by:

• –– organisation and category

• –– service provider

• –– date at a monthly level

• benchmark your spend against your peers

• identify:

• –– organisations buying similar services

• –– differences in pricing

• –– the leading supplier

• see how important each buyer is to a supplier

• benchmark public sector organisations’ spend on a consistent basis

• see how much public sector organisations spend with different suppliers

Supply Chain Insights forms part of the Grant Thornton Public Sector Insight Studio portfolio 

of analytics platforms.

Click on Supply Chain Insights for more information.

10

http://supplychaininsights.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk





AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

COUNTER FRAUD TEAM UPDATE REPORT 

1. Summary

1.1 This report provides Members with details of the work carried out by the 
Counter Fraud Team for the period 1st April 2018 to 31st December 2018.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Members note the content of the report and the work carried out by the 
Counter Fraud Team in the 2018/19 municipal year to date.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. The Counter Fraud Team is based within the Revenues and Benefits 
Department and is responsible for organising work programmes to 
detect fraud and error within areas including Council Tax, Benefits, 
Business Rates and Social Housing.      

3.2. If the public suspect fraud within any of these areas they can report their 
concerns, in confidence, through the Council’s fraud hotline, 01322 
343494 or on-line through the Council’s website www.dartford.gov.uk. 

3.3. The Council takes protecting the public pursue very seriously and will 
take action against those persons deemed to have abused the schemes 
which are designed to protect the most vulnerable groups in society. 

3.4. The Counter Fraud Team co-ordinates the Council’s participation in all 
of the government organised anti-fraud schemes and takes a lead role 
in Kent-wide pro-active fraud detection schemes.

3.5. This report provides an outline of progress and developments achieved 
so far in the financial year 2018/19.

4. Summary of Issues in the Report

4.1    The Counter Fraud Team update can be found in Appendix A to this report 
which summaries the following aspects:

 A summary of the work programmes devised, developed and co-
ordinated by the Counter Fraud Team.

 A breakdown of successes attained by the Counter Fraud Team.

 An outline of projects arising in the next 6 to 12 months.

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Not applicable.



AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

6. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None.

Legal Implications None. 

Staffing Implications None. 

Administrative 
Implications

None. 

Risk Assessment No uncertainties and/or constraints.

7. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

8. Appendices

Appendix A – Counter Fraud Update Report January 2019

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

N/A N/A Glen Moore
01732 227471

Audit, Risk 
& Anti-
Fraud

N/A



AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

Appendix A

Counter Fraud Team Update Report

January 2019

1. Introduction

This report updates Members on the activities of the Counter Fraud Team 
between 1st April 2018 and 31st December 2018.

2. Work Programmes

Council Tax

Every year the Counter Fraud Team co-ordinates the Council’s participation in 
the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) data match between Council Tax records and 
the Electoral Roll. This year the Counter Fraud Team will scrutinise the validity 
of over 900 Single Person Discount awards under this work area.

The Revenues and Benefits Department supplements this work by pro-actively 
data matching Council Tax records with Credit Reference Agency data on a 
monthly basis.

The purpose of both of these exercises is to ensure that all Council Tax 
discounts and exemptions are awarded correctly and only those persons 
eligible to receive reductions in their Council Tax bills pay less than the full 
charge.

The Counter Fraud Team oversees the issuing of fines and sanctions against 
those persons found not to have acted in accordance with Council Tax 
legislation.

The affect of the Counter Fraud Teams work programmes in this area can be 
found in section 3 of this report. 

Business Rates

Dartford Borough Council is keen to support small businesses within its district 
and so to aid a thriving local commercial ethos. Relief from Business Rates bills 
is available (within certain parameters) to businesses operating from one site 
within England and Wales.

The Revenues and Benefits Department in collaboration with the Counter Fraud 
Team, co-ordinates two separate checking schemes for checking the validity of 
applications for Small Business Rate Relief (SBRR), one for limited companies 
and one for sole traders. It is hoped that these pro-active work initiatives raise 
the assurance levels in this area and keep Business Rates bills as low as 
possible.

Benefits & Social Housing

Every two years the Counter Fraud Team co-ordinates the Council’s 
participation in the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) main exercise. 



AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

The National Fraud Initiative (NFI) (main exercise) is an exercise that matches 
electronic data within public and private sector bodies to prevent and detect 
fraud. The results of this data match are due to be released in late January 
2019.

The perternant areas within this work area are Council Tax Reduction (CTR) 
claims, Social Housing tenancies, Social Housing Waiting List applications and 
Right-to-Buy applications.

3. Successes

The Counter Fraud Team’s strategy in eliminating fraud and error within the 
area of Council Tax Single Person Discounts has been effective. The work 
conducted over the past 6 years under both the NFI Council Tax exercise and 
Credit Reference Agency data matching has been successful in removing 
discounts, which are not valid.

The table below shows a comparison between the ratio of number of 
chargeable dwellings to the number of Single Person Discounts awarded 
between 2012 & 2018.

The number of chargeable dwellings has increased by 5,187 between 2012 and 
2018. In 2012, 34.8% of dwellings received a Single Person Discount. If this 
pattern was replicated then by 2018, there should have been some 15,782 
dwellings receiving a Single Person Discount, but as can be seen, instead of 
an increase there has actually been a 1.7% decrease in the number of dwellings 
receiving a reduction.      

Dartford Borough Council

Number of 
chargeable 

dwellings (2012)

Number of
Single Person

Discounts 
applied
(2012)

Number of 
chargeable 

dwellings (2018)

Number of
Single Person

Discounts 
applied
(2018)

40,165 13,980 45,352 13,734

It is hoped that this work will continue and thereby ensure that Council Tax bills 
are kept as low as possible.

4. Future Projects

In February 2016, the responsibility for investigating and prosecution of 
Housing Benefit fraud passed from local authority investigation teams to the 
Department for Work & Pensions.



AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

In November 2018, Dartford Borough Council volunteered to join a pilot scheme 
to re-commence a joint working programme between local authority 
investigation teams and Fraud and Error staff based within the Department for 
Work & Pensions.

The go-live date for the Kent part of this project is in February 2019 and it is 
hoped that joined up welfare benefit/Council Tax Reduction investigations will 
mean that enforcement work is more efficient and effective and the public 
pursue is better protected.    





AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (January 2019)

1. Summary

1.1. This report provides Members with an update on the progress to date on the 
delivery of the 2018/19 Internal Audit Plan. It also provides a broader update 
on the audit service since our last report in October 2018. 

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Members note the Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2019) 
attached as Appendix A to this report.

3. Background and Discussion

Reporting the outcomes of the internal audit service is a requirement 
under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). As 
those charged with governance, the Audit Board is required through its 
Terms of Reference to provide oversight of the internal audit service.

The Audit Board receives regular updates from the Internal Audit 
partnership. Principally the focus on these updates is to track progress, 
findings, and key insights from delivery of the Internal Audit Plan. The 
Board provide a key oversight role, and as charged with governance, 
must be satisfied that the Council is operating effective internal control, 
risk and governance processes.

Following the appointment of a new Interim Audit Manager (Chief Audit 
Executive) in August 2018, the Audit Board agreed to adopt an updated 
and more integrated progress report. This report not only outlines 
progress against the audit plan, but also provides greater details on the 
development of the audit service, and the broader assurance and value 
provided by the service. 

4. Internal Audit Resources 

4.1 The report (Appendix A) provides an update on how the Internal Audit 
resources have been deployed to date (31 December 2018). The 
opportunity has also been taken to provide a more detailed service 
update following appointment of an interim Audit Manager (Chief Audit 
Executive).

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

5.1 Not applicable



AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

6. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications The Internal Audit Partnership is responsible to 
deliver the audit service. Delivery of the plan is 
already approved within the Council’s budget 
and so needs no new funding to be delivered.

Legal Implications This report is presented for information only and 
so it has no direct Legal implications.

Staffing Implications The use of Internal Audit resources are set out 
in the report (Appendix A). 

Administrative 
Implications

This report is presented for information only and 
so it has no administrative implications.

Risk Assessment This report is presented for information only and 
so it has no direct risk management 
implications.

7. Details of Exempt Information Category

7.1 Not applicable

8. Appendices

Appendix A – Internal Audit Update Report (January 2019)

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date Report Author Section &
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Previous Audit Board reports 
as published on the Council 
website. 

Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (March 2017)

04/10/18 Audit Manager
01322 343004

Internal Audit 
Partnership

&

Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

N/A



Appendix A 

Internal Audit Progress 
Report

January 2019



Page 1 of 15

Introduction

All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (regulation 5). The latter 
requires authorities to: 

“…undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance.”

The Regulations state that services must follow the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards - a 
consolidated approach to internal auditing standards across the whole of public sector. They are an 
expansion of international standards by HM Government, adding elements specific to the UK public 
Sector. The ‘Standards’ form part of the wider mandatory elements of the International 
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) which is applicable to all UK Local Authorities:

These ‘Standards’ mandate the mission of internal audit: to enhance and protect organisational 
value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight. We achieve this by 
bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control and governance for the Council.

The Standards require that the Chief Audit Executive (the Audit Manager fulfils this role for the 
Council) issues an annual opinion.  The Opinion considers internal control, corporate governance 
and risk management. It is a key part of the overall assurance, Members and Officers of the Council 
draw on when evaluating governance.  

This report updates Members on progress and findings as we complete the Audit Plan approved by 
the Audit Board in April 2018, in addition to providing insights from the wider governance roles that 
we fulfil. 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/pdfs/uksi_20150234_en.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/641252/PSAIS_1_April_2017.pdf
http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2642&Ver=4


Page 2 of 15

Internal Control

Internal control is how the Council ensures achievement of its objectives. In particular, internal 
control achieves and displays effectiveness and efficiency, reliable financial reporting and 
compliance with law, rules and policies.  It incorporates both financial and non-financial aspects.

We gather evidence to support this part of the Opinion principally through completing the reviews 
set out in our audit plan.  As we deliver this work we assess and conclude on the overall level of 
assurance offered by the controls in accordance with the agreed definitions (see appendix I)

Audit Plan Progress

The Audit Board approved our Audit Plan 2018/19 in April 2018.  The plan set out a summary of the 
audit projects to be delivered, along with a resource plan showing the total number of days 
allocated to the plan.

We began work on the plan in May 2018, following completion of the remaining 2017/18 audit 
work. 

We use a time recording system called Teammate to log all time spent on the different audit 
related tasks. This system enables us to capture time spent delivering different activities and 
individual audit projects. 

We have been able to further analyse the data in the system, and set out below is an updated table 
to show how we have utilised audit days up to December 2018. Please note that as a result of the 
analysis, we have updated the previous reported figures from September 2018:

Category
2018/19 

Plan 
Days

Outturn to 
September 2018

(corrected)

Outturn to 
December 2018

Days 
Remaining

2018/19 Assurance Projects 256 76 118
158

(+40 between 
Oct-Dec)

98

Contingency and Consultancy
Reported as: General 

administration/Committee 
reporting/service 

development/Audit 
Planning/risk 

management/joint working

156 88 83
123 

(+40 between 
Oct - Dec)

33

Totals (18/19 Work Only) 412 164 201 281 131

Based on the figures above, we have utilised just over 68% of the planned days towards the 
2018/19 audit plan.  



Page 3 of 15

When bearing in mind the progress against the plan and remaining projects yet to be completed 
(detailed in the tables below), we are satisfied that we have the necessary days available to deliver 
all of the remaining projects on the plan. 

Audit Work 

The table below shows delivery of the audit plan up to the end of December 2018. 

Audit projects completed 

Dartford Audit Plan 2018/19
No Title Budget Date Issued Conclusion 
2018/19 Audit Work Completed so far
1 DBC13 – Fly-Tipping 10 August 18 Substantial

2 DBC15-SDC11 – Environmental Health Food Safety 
SHARED 10* November 18 Substantial

3 DBC06 - Procurement 10 November 18 Substantial
4 DBC11 – Parking Enforcement 15 November 18 Full
5 DBC12 – Disabled Facilities Grants 10 December 18 Full
6 DBC3-18/19 Members Allowances & Expenses 10 December 18 Substantial

*Days shared with Sevenoaks

Audit projects awaiting completion 

Dartford Audit Plan 2018/19
No Title Budget Expected Progress
7 DBC2-18/19 Licensing - Administration 15 Q3 Fieldwork

8
DBC4-SDC5 -18/19 Council Tax Systems Mapping - 
SHARED

10* Q3 Fieldwork

9 DBC10-18/19 – Accounts Payable Systems 
Mapping 10 Q3 Fieldwork

10 DBC14-18/19 Building Control 10 Q3 Planning

11
DBC5-SDC6 -18/19 Business Rates Systems 
Mapping - SHARED

10* Q4 Planning

12 DBC07-18/19 Health & Safety 10 Q4 Planning
13 DBC9-18/19 Payroll 15 Q4 Planning
14 DBC16-18/19 GDPR 15 Q4 Planning
15 DBC17-18/19 Fleet Vehicle Management 10 Q4 Not yet started
16 DBC01-18/19 Homelessness Reduction Act 15 Q4 Not yet started
17 DBC08-18/19 Business Continuity – follow-up 5 Q3 REMOVED

*Days shared with Sevenoaks 



Page 4 of 15

Business Continuity: Originally we had planned to undertake a more detailed follow-up of the 
original recommendations arising from our audit in October 2017. However, we have since 
conducted a follow-up of these actions as part of our usual follow-up process and verified and 
closed the recommendations. This was reported to Audit Board in October 2018, and so we have 
subsequently removed the area from the 18/19 audit plan. 

With regards to business continuity, we are currently working with the Council in developing an 
action plan, and business continuity response as part of our scenario planning for Brexit. As a result, 
all services (including the Audit Partnership) are undertaking an exercise to update, assess and test 
our Business Continuity arrangements. 

The chart below shows a summary of the audit plan based on current progress (with fieldwork 
including any work not yet reported as final): 

 

Not yet started, 
6%

Planning, 38%

Fieldwork, 19%

Complete, 38%

Not yet started
Planning
Fieldwork
Complete

Dartford Progress 18/19



Page 5 of 15

Audit Work Summaries

We include below executive summaries of the reports issued in final since our last update report in 
October 2018. 

Shared Environmental Health: Food Safety – Issued in November 2018  

The purpose of this audit review was to provide independent assurance on how new technology is 
being used to make the process for food safety inspections more efficient. This is in response to the 
significant increase in the number of new food business registrations received across the 
Partnership localities over the last six years. 

It is our opinion based on the results of our work that there is Substantial Assurance in place to 
ensure that the service is working in compliance with the relevant legislation and in accordance 
with agreed procedures. This means there is generally a sound framework of control in place 
designed to meet the Council’s service objectives. However, there are isolated weaknesses in 
design of controls or inconsistent application of controls, which put the achievement of a limited 
number of objectives at risk.

Our testing confirms that the service is operating the new software to undertake inspections and 
that those inspections are conducted in accordance with legislation and the Food Standard Agency 
requirements. However, there is a significant backlog of initial inspections for new premises, which 
needs to be addressed. We raised 3 recommendations in this review, of the following priority 
ratings:  

 Priority Ranking Number of 
recommendations

Very High 0
High 0

Medium 1
Low 2
Total 3

Procurement – Issued in November 2018

The purpose of this audit review was to provide independent assurance regarding the effectiveness 
of the processes in place for the procurement activity of the Council. The review checked to ensure 
that these arrangements are adequate and fit for purpose to deliver service objectives and comply 
with Council procedures.

It is our opinion that there is Substantial Assurance in place to ensure achievement of service 
objectives and management of key risks. This means there is generally a sound framework of 
control in place designed to meet the Council’s service objectives. However, there are isolated 
weaknesses in design of controls or inconsistent application of controls



Page 6 of 15

We conclude as a result of our testing that the controls in place regarding compliance with 
Regulations, Council policies and good practice in respect of Procurement are sound. Procedures for 
the procurements tested have been followed, and apart from needing to be updated, guidance is in 
place and awareness of procurement practices is good.  We raised 2 recommendations in this 
review, of the following priority ratings:

Priority Ranking Number of 
recommendations

Very High 0
High 0

Medium 1
Low 1
Total 2

Parking Enforcement – Issued in November 2018

The purpose of this audit review was to assess the processes in place for Parking Enforcement to 
ensure compliance with legislation and Council policy.

It is our opinion, based on the results of our work, that the controls in place provide Full Assurance. 
This means there is a sound framework of control in place, and that the expected controls tested 
are operating effectively.

We conclude that the Parking Enforcement Service has processes in place to ensure compliance 
with legislation and Council policy. Income procedures are in place and followed, and any unpaid 
PCNs are followed through to recovery. Our testing also confirmed that previous audit actions had 
been fully implemented. The Team has also seen benefits and improvements from the recent 
service review and restructure. We raised 2 recommendations in this review, of the following 
priority ratings:  

Priority Ranking Number of 
recommendations

Very High 0
High 0

Medium 0
Low 2
Total 2

Disabled Facilities Grants – Issued in December 2018

The purpose of this audit review was to provide independent assurance over the effectiveness of 
the controls in place to administer Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG’s).

It is our opinion, based on the results of our work, that there is Full Assurance in place to ensure 
compliance with relevant legislation. All expected controls tested were found to be operating 
effectively and supporting guidance and procedures were up to date and are operating effectively. 
We raised no recommendations in this review. 



Page 7 of 15

Members Allowances   & Expenses – Issued December 2018

The purpose of the audit review was to provide independent assurance over the effectiveness of 
the controls in place to administer the payment of Member’s Allowances and expenses. 

Following the completion of our audit work, we concluded that the administration and payment of 
Members allowances and expenses comply with the Members Allowances Scheme. Payments made 
are accurate, timely and expenses are supported by appropriate evidence.  While our testing 
identified that the figures currently published online are out of date, allowances paid for 2018/19 
were in accordance with the rates as per the scheme.

It is our opinion based on the results of our work that the controls in place provide Substantial 
Assurance. This means that there is a sound framework of control in place designed to meet the 
objectives of the service. 

We raised 1 recommendation in this review, of the following priority ratings:  

Priority Ranking Number of 
recommendations

Very High 0
High 0

Medium 1
Low 0
Total 1



Page 8 of 15

Audit actions 

We raise recommendations from our work to assist management in addressing control failings, or to suggest service improvements. All audit 
actions are tracked and followed up when they fall due. This enables us to monitor and report progress towards implementation. If the actions 
have not been fully implemented then we will review dates, and where appropriate, agree to defer and follow-up at a later date. The table 
below shows the current actions, and progress against implementation:

Project Report Issue Date & Rating Recs 
Agreed Delayed Agreed 

Deferrals Not due Closed Completed
Full 

Completion 
date

Human Resources 2015/16 31/5/16
Satisfactory/Satisfactory 2 0 0 1 (High) 0 1 -

Markets Income 2016/17 3/4/17
Substantial Assurance 1 0 1 (Medium) 0 0 0 -

CCTV Operations 2017/18 6/12/17
Substantial Assurance 6 0 0 0 1

(see below) 5 December 
2018

Agency Staff 2017/18 12/12/17
Substantial Assurance 1 0 0 0 1

(see below) 0 -

Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults 
2017/18

2/2/18
Substantial Assurance 3 0 0 2 (Medium) 0 1 -

Dartford Museum 2017/18 12/3/18
Substantial Assurance 2 0 0 2 (Medium) 0 0 -

Fly-Tipping 2018/19 August 2018
Substantial Assurance 5 0 0 5 (3 Medium 

& 2 Low) 0 0 -

Procurement 2018//19 November 2018
Substantial Assurance 2 0 0 2 (2 Low) 0 0 -

Parking Enforcement 2018/19 November 2018
Full Assurance 2 0 0 2 (2 Low) 0 0 -

Disabled Facilities Grants 
2018/19

December 2018
Full Assurance 0 0 0 0 0 0 -

Food Safety 2018/19 December 2018
Substantial Assurance 3 0 0 3 (2 Low & 1 

Medium) 0 0 -

Members Allowances & 
Expenses 2018/19

December 2018
Substantial Assurance 1 0 0 1 (Medium) 0 0 -

TOTAL 28 1 18 2 7



Page 9 of 15

Based on the results of our current follow-up work, there are 19 actions that are ‘live’ and which we 
are monitoring. We will report progress on the implementation of these actions as they fall due.

Closed Actions

CCTV: In 2017 we raised a recommendation relating to the CCTV server room. Following the office 
renovation works, the CCTV equipment is being moved to a new secure area within the ICT office. 
We have therefore agreed with the service to close this recommendation as it is no longer 
applicable / relevant. 

Agency Staff: Following careful consideration of the options – which included permanent 
employment – management have concluded that the existing arrangements with the Temporary 
Agency resource, is the most suitable way to meet the needs of the service. However, this will be 
kept under review, and should the need change, alternative resourcing options will once again be 
considered. As a result, we have closed this action.  

High Priority Actions

We currently have 1 high risk recommendation (Human Resources). An update was provided to 
Audit Board in their meeting in July 2018 where a deferred date of January 2019 was agreed. We will 
therefore report progress when due, in line with that date:

Human Resources – Policies HIGH
Action 1: Although all the relevant HR policies are available to officers they need to be 
reviewed, to ensure that they incorporate latest guidance, or statutory requirements and to 
ensure fitness for purpose. A timescale and priority list should be agreed with senior 
management to ensure that the review process commence promptly to ensure that the 
most urgent and important policies are reviewed without further delay.

Response – July 2018
Response 1: Policies have been reviewed and updated and are in draft format. Currently 
each policy is going through the approval process in stages.  These will be rolled out as and 
when agreed by 31 January 2019 along with associated documentation and a new employee 
handbook.

http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2738&Ver=4


Page 10 of 15

Agreed Deferred Actions

Following review of current progress we have agreed to defer 1 MEDIUM priority recommendation 
until later in the year. Further detail is outlined below: 

Markets Income MEDIUM
Action 1: Management should monitor and encourage progress towards a higher 
percentage of traders paying by standing order and potentially by direct debit. 

Response – December 2018
Response 1: We are currently in the process of appraising different software options that 
will allow market traders to pay electronically. Following the outcomes of this work, and 
selection of the most appropriate software, we will be working with IT to test and 
implement later in the year. As January and February are quiet months for market trading, 
we will be aiming to roll this solution out early in the new financial year (April 2019) 

Teammate

We purchased and implemented new audit management software in 2017/18 called Teammate. 
Following a period of training, and development, we are now using the system for all audit work 
undertaken from the 2018/19 audit plan. Part of the system is designed specifically to enable the 
automation of audit recommendations.  This includes the facility to send out e-mail notifications, 
create and sign-off electronic working papers and greatly enhance reporting. 

Since our last update in October, we have begun to track and report on the implementation of audit 
actions through the software. All actions for 2018/19 work are now being captured, monitored and 
reported on through the software. Over time, this will enable us to create more powerful insights 
across our work, and also across the profile of the Council, in addition, to bringing greater 
efficiencies to the follow-up process. 



Page 11 of 15

Governance

Corporate governance is the rules, practices and processes that direct and control the Council. We 
gain evidence of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance through completion of our 
governance related audits on the audit plan (such as GDPR), but also through ‘other’ activities. 
These include:

 Risk Management: Our audit work takes into account strategic and operational risk 
management, and our testing considers the effectiveness of the controls in place to 
manage those risks to acceptable levels. We also have a co-ordination role with regards 
to the risk management strategy, and will provide support, guidance and training across 
the Council to help improve our risk management arrangements;

 Counter Fraud: We consider the risk of fraud in all of our regular audit projects, and our 
audit universe includes relevant policies and procedures aimed at preventing, detecting 
or tackling fraud (such as Officer Declarations, Gifts and Hospitality, and Expenses). We 
will be considering more proactive efforts as part of the 2019/20 audit plan;

 Whistleblowing (speaking-up): The Policy was reviewed, updated and approved by 
Audit Board in January 2017. The Audit Manager is a named officer in the policy, along 
with Senior Officers and the Chair of Audit Board. We will report feedback on 
whistleblowing matters to Members as part of the Annual Audit Opinion. To date, we 
have not received any official disclosures through the policy;

 Ad-hoc advice & Consultancy: Internal Audit resource may sometimes be more usefully 
focussed towards providing advice and consultancy rather than assurance. We 
undertake these activities (such as advice, guidance and training) to add value, provide 
greater insight and improve governance, risk management and control processes. As 
such, we include contingency days into the audit plan which can be called upon to 
deliver special projects. 

Our involvement enables us to provide greater insight into the governance of the Council. As these 
roles develop, our audit plan will be reactive to the demand on audit time and resource. This could 
include more or less involvement depending on the appetite of management. 

We will continue to report outcomes to the Audit Board throughout the year. 

http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2548&Ver=4


Page 12 of 15

Service update 

In the November Partnership Board meeting, the Board agreed to extend the secondment with Mid 
Kent Audit, to provide Audit Management (Chief Audit Executive) from 31/01/2019 to 31/03/2019. 
This is to enable the Partnership Board to consider a more detailed proposal about the future 
strategy for the Internal Audit Service, and to enable the outcomes to be reported to Audit Board in 
March 2019.

Building on our previous service update, below sets out the key objectives over the period, along 
with an indicator of progress to date. The references link to the External Quality Assessment 
recommendations (which were reported to Audit Board in July 2018): 

Action Area Description Progress EQA

Audit Strategy & 
Operating Models

Draft the Internal Audit Strategy and delivery model 
options for the longer term operation of the service 

50% EQA 1.1

Audit Charter

Update the Internal Audit Charter to be compliant with the 
PSIAS, and to better reflect the level of service for each 
Authority. Charters to also set out the roles of CAE, Audit 
Board and set out the safeguards to independence

75%
EQA 1.0, 
1.2

Internal Audit Process

Undertake an exercise to refresh the audit process to 
ensure compliance with PSIAS and harmonised where 
appropriate across both Authorities with the aid of 
Teammate to provide efficiency and consistent working 
practices

100%
EQA 3.2, 
3.5, 4.1, 
4.2, 4.6

Brand & Presentation

Update and refresh key audit documents (audit briefs, 
reports, follow-ups, and management team / audit board 
reports) to include recognised good practice and to meet 
the needs of each Partner

85% EQA 4.2

Communication & 
Engagement 

Create a suite of supporting literature for auditees and the 
Council to raise awareness of the service and wider 
profession (providing clarity / education of the internal 
audit service, process, FAQ’s and consultancy & additional 
services)

85%
EQA 4.1, 
4.2, 5.4

Risk Management 

Provide updated risk management strategies for each 
Partner, including recognised good practice updates, and 
improved risk reporting to Management Teams and 
Members

25%  

Members will continue to receive regular updates on how the above actions are being progressed, 
and will be a key part of the process for approving any future plans and strategies for the service. 

http://committeedmz.dartford.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=286&MId=2738&Ver=4


Page 13 of 15

Internal Audit Process 

The purpose of an Internal Audit is to provide independent and objective assurance over the 
effectiveness of the Council’s controls, risks and governance. We achieve this by documenting, 
reviewing and testing the systems, processes and controls in place for each area under review. 

The summary below shows our updated process, which takes into account the requirements of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, and creates a consistent process for Partnership Auditors to 
follow when undertaking work in Dartford and Sevenoaks. The updated process is effective from 
December 2018 along with a new audit brief and report template, which enable us to more 
effectively communicate the outcomes of our work.



Page 14 of 15

Performance

Following our work to update our existing processes, we have taken the opportunity to review how 
we measure our activity.  From 1 December 2018, we adopted a new set of performance indicators 
for the partnership as a whole.  For the time being, we are just intending to  capture the 
information with a view to better understand how our processes are embedding, but moving 
forward into 2019/20 these indicators will form a  link to the Internal Audit Strategy. 

Finance: Associated performance indicators Internal processes: Associated performance 
indicators

F1: Projects Completed within budgeted days
Reported on a project by project basis
Indicator measures any variance between the days 
agreed on the final brief vs. the actual time coded 
on Teammate TEC

I1: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT and FINAL 
Audit Brief 
Reported on a project by project basis
Indicator measures the effectiveness of our project 
planning and time taken to prepare the work 
programme

F2: Chargeable days
Reported on a quarterly basis
Indicator measures the actual chargeable 
activities against the assumptions made in the 
audit plan

I2: Time taken between the issue of the FEEDBACK 
and DRAFT report 
Reported on a project by project basis
Indicator measures the currency of our audit finding 
and effective engagement between Auditors and 
Clients 

F3: PSIAS conformance
Reported annually 
Indicator measures effectiveness of the Quality 
Assurance & Improvement Programme (QIAP) to 
ensure compliance with professional Standards. 

I3: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT report and 
FINAL report
Reported on a project by project basis
Indicator measures the effectiveness of our process to 
finalise audit reports and issue the report in a timely 
manner 

Client satisfaction: Associated performance 
indicators

Learning & Development: Associated performance 
indicators

C1: Respondents satisfied with the conduct of the 
Auditor
Reported on a project by project basis
Indicator measures Client satisfaction with how 
we undertook the work, and takes into account 
our professionalism, approach and competence 

L1: Audit actions fully implemented within agreed 
timescales
Reported on a quarterly basis
Indicator measures the successful implementation of 
audit actions and the effectiveness of our follow-up 
process

C2: Respondents agreement with the audit 
actions
Reported on a project by project basis
Indicator measures Client agreement to the audit 
findings and resulting actions from our audit work

L2: Training & development days 
Reported annually
Indicator measures our investment and time spent on 
training and development against the assumptions 
made in the audit plan

As we move into quarter 4 we will begin to collate and report against these indicators and include an update 
in our next progress report in March 2019.



Page 15 of 15

Appendix I

Definitions of Assurance ratings:

OPINION DEFINITIONS

Full Assurance

(no High or Medium 
priority actions)

A sound framework of control is in place that meets Council or 
service objectives. All expected controls tested are in place and are 
operating effectively.

A review with this level of assurance will generally have no actions, 
or very few LOW priority actions. Agreed actions will be followed up 
as they fall due.

Substantial Assurance

(no High priority actions)

There is generally a sound framework of control in place that meets 
Council or service objectives. However, there are isolated 
weaknesses in design of controls, or inconsistent application of 
controls, which puts the achievement of a limited number of 
objectives at risk.

A review of this level of assurance may raise a number of MEDIUM 
priority actions. Agreed actions will be followed up as they fall due. 

Limited Assurance

There are weaknesses within the framework of control or evidence 
of non-compliance with Council procedures or good practice, which 
puts the achievement of the Council’s or service objectives in many 
of the areas reviewed at risk.

A review with this level of assurance will raise one or more HIGH 
priority actions. Actions with a high priority should be acted on as 
soon as practical and will be followed up as soon as they fall due.

No Assurance

Key controls are absent from the framework of control. There are 
fundamental weaknesses identified with both the design and 
operation of the system under review. As a result, it is unlikely that 
Council or service objectives will be achieved.

A review of this level may include a number of HIGH or CRITICAL 
priority actions. Actions of a critical level will be reported as soon as 
they are identified and escalated to the relevant Senior Manager. 
Actions to address the findings will be followed up as soon as they 
fall due. 

  



AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS

1. Summary

1.1 During the October 2018 meeting of the Board, Members selected five creditor 
payments for checking. This report summarises the findings of this exercise 
and provides the opportunity for Members to select a further 5 payments for 
checking. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members note the content of this report and request any further 
explanations as required.

2.2 That Members select 5 further payments for checking by Internal Audit.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a 
sample of payments made by the Council for review. Following review 
of these payment, Members receive a report on the findings, and 
consider them as part of each meeting. This is intended to provide 
Members with reasonable assurance that goods and services 
commissioned or procured, for which payments have been made, are in 
compliance with Council procedures. In particular, that they have been 
properly authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making 
the appropriate payments.

3.2. During the meeting of the Board on 24 October 2018, Members selected 
the following five payments for checking:

 Ofcom Radio Licence Fees £150.00 (Gross)
 OJO0001                 £1,692.93 (Gross)
 Old Sun Estates   £1,950.00(Gross)
 OSCRO001                          £3,510.00 (Gross)
 Oxford Innovations Ltd £16,554.83 (Gross)

4. Summary of Findings

4.1 The results of testing confirm that all the spend decisions were made 
appropriately and in compliance with Council procedures. Detailed 
summaries of the outcome of each payment are set out below.



AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

5. Detailed Findings

5.1 Ofcom (£150.00) – This payment was for the renewal of the licence fee 
for radio (walkie-talkies) used by a number of shops, based on Temple 
Hill Square. Radios enable shopkeepers to communicate with each 
other and other support authorities in the event of criminal or anti-social 
behaviour. It is a legal requirement under Section 7 of the Wireless and 
Telegraphy Act 2006 to operate these radios with a licence. Testing 
confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with payment procedures.

5.2 OJO0001 (£1692.93) – The payment was to a private property owner 
and related to a Dartford Private Landlord Scheme (DPLS) property that 
had suffered floor damage. Without the necessary repairs, the property 
would not have been able to house a Council tenant. Testing confirmed 
that the payment was justified, made promptly and in accordance with 
payment procedures.

5.3 Old Sun Estates (£1950.00) – This payment was made directly to a 
letting agent for the deposit and one month rent in advance for a one 
bedroom flat.  This payment was a loan to an individual, who had made 
contact with the Council’s Housing Service, because of the threat of 
homelessness from their current accommodation. The individual has 
signed the ‘Repayment of Loan Under Homelessness Prevention 
Agreement’ and has agreed to repay the Council in monthly instalments. 
The individual had a dependent child under the age of 18 and was 
prevented from being placed into emergency temporary accommodation 
by sourcing their own private rented accommodation. Testing confirmed 
that the payment was justified, made promptly and in accordance with 
payment procedures.

5.4 OSCRO001 (£3510.00) – This payment was for the professional fees, 
paid to a barrister, employed by Cornerstone Chambers, for providing 
support, relating to a Housing case that was initiated against the Council. 
Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with payment procedures.  

5.5 Oxford Innovations Ltd (£16,554.83) – This  was the monthly payment 
(for June 2018) to Oxford Innovations Ltd for the maintenance and 
operational costs of the Council owned Nucleus commercial office 
building. As there is no day-to-day management from the Council, it pays 
Oxford Innovations to manage and run the Nucleus on its behalf. It is in 
Oxford Innovations' best interest to attract new clients and keep costs as 
low as possible, otherwise they would not benefit from a profit share, as 
detailed in their agreement with the Council.  Oxford Innovations prepare 
their own monthly accounts and submit them to the Council’s Deputy 
Accountant, who checks them against the Council’s set of accounts at 
year-end. Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made 
promptly and in accordance with payment procedures.
  



AUDIT BOARD
23 JANUARY 2019

6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Not applicable

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications None

Administrative 
Implications

None

Risk Assessment Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the 
Council carries potential inherent risks of fraud, 
or misappropriation. The Selective Invoice 
Checks’ process is one of many steps employed 
by the Council to manage fraud risks and to 
ensure value for money.

8. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

9. Appendices

None
BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date Report Author Section &
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

None 04/10/18 Audit Manager
01322 343004

Internal Audit 
Partnership
&
Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

N/A




	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 October 2018
	6 External Audit Update
	Item 6 Appendix A - DBC Audit Board Progress Report January 2019 v2.PPTX

	7 Counter Fraud Team Update Report
	8 Internal Audit Update Report - January 2019
	RH.amd.FINAL Appendix A - Internal Audit Progress Report (January 2019)

	9 Selective Invoice Checks

